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To the Board of Directors of Halk Faktoring Anonim $Sirketi,

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Halk
Faktoring Anonim Sirketi (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2016, and the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the Banking Regulation and Supervision
Agency (“"BRSA") Accounting and Reporting Legislation which includes
“Communigué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to be implemented
by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies” published in the Official
Gazette numbered 28861 dated 24 December 2013 and “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies”, communiqués, and circulars and, announcements made
by BRSA and requirements of Turkish Accounting Standards for the matters not
regulated by the aforementioned legislations, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Independent Standards on
Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority ("POA"). Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our audit is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Halk Faktoring Anonim Sirketi as at 31 December 2016,
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC");
no significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
Company’s bookkeeping activities for the period 1 January - 31 December 2016 are not in
compliance with TCC and the Company's articles of association in relation to financial
reporting.

2) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the TCC; the Board of Directors
provided us the necessary explanations and requested documents in connection with the
audit.

Akis Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik A.S.
A G International Cooperative

Par

15 March 2017
Istanbul, Turkey
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET) AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
ASSET Notes 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC Total TL FC Total

I CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,215 - 1,215 421 - 421
1L FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Net) - - - - - -
2.1 Financial Assets Held for Trading - - - - - ,
22 Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value

Through Profit or Loss - - - - - -
23 Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading - - - - = B
11 BANKS 3 1,585,577 376,515 1,962,092 552,188 609,390 1,161,578

RECEIVABLES FROM REVERSE
v, REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS - . - - - -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR
V. SALE (Net) . - - - - -
VI FACTORING RECEIVABLES 4 849,636,746 284,891,836  1,134,528,582 415,948,297 69,871,827 485,820,124
6.1 Discounted Factoring Receivables 226,225,108 249,211,352 475,436,460 175,839,666 6,214,873 182,054,539
6.1.1 Domestic 234,044,376 249,705,257 483,749,633 182,301,798 6,226,170 188,527,968
6.1.2 Foreign - - N - - &
6.1.3 Unearned Income (-) (7,819,268) (493,905) (8,313,173) (6,462,132) (11,297) (6,473,429)
6.2 Other Factoring Receivables 623,411,638 35,680,484 659,092,122 240,108,631 63,656,954 303,765,585
6.2.1 Domestic 623,411,638 - 623,411,638 240,108,631 - 240,108,631
6.2.2 Foreign - 35,680,484 35,680,484 - 63,656,954 63,656,954
VIL FINANCING LOANS . - - - - o
7.1 Private Customer Loans * - % i 5 =
7.2 Credit Cards - - - i
7.3 Installament Based Commercial Loans - - - - =
VIIL LEASE RECEIVABLES - - - - - o
8.1 Lease Receivables - - - - - =
8.1.1 Finance Lease Receivables - - & & z 5
8.12 Operational Lease Receivables - - - - B -
8.13 Other - - - -
8.14 Unearned Income (-) - - -
8.2 Leasing Contracts in Progress - - - i
8.3 Advances Given for Lease Transactions - - - - - -
IX. OTHER RECEIVABLES ) 5 1,004,770 72,117 1,076,887 808,580 34 808,614

NON-PERFORMING FACTORING
X. RECEIVABLES 6 - - - 1,063,590 - 1,063,590
10.1 Non-Performing Factoring Receivables 23,315,694 - 23,315,694 5,918,684 - 5,918,684
10.2 Non-Performing Financing Loans - - - - g
10.3 Non-Performing Lease Receivables - - - - 5
10.4 Specific Provisions (-) (23,315,694) - (23,315,694) (4,855,094) (4,855,094)
XI. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD

FOR RISK MANAGEMENT PURPOSE - - - -
1.1 Fair Value Hedges - - - - = &
11.2 Cash Flow Hedges - - : = i
11.3 Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operations - - - -
XIL INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY (Net) - - - - - -
XIII. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Net) - - - - - B
XIv. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Net) 6 - 6 6 - 6
XV. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (Net) - - - - - .
XVL TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 7 807,215 - 807,215 880,279 - 880,279
XVIL INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 8 322,815 - 322,815 224,503 - 224,503
17.1 Goodwill B . - - 5 ’
17.2 Other Intangibles 322,815 - 322,815 224,503 - 224,503
XVIII. PREPAID EXPENSES 9 381,932 30,022 411,954 279,833 23,832 303,665
IXX. CURRENT TAX ASSETS 17 970,394 - 970,394 - - -
XX. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 10 1,926,648 - 1,926,648 1,630,640 - 1,630,640
XX OTHER ASSETS 11 26,404 - 26,404 415,976 - 415,976

SUBTOTAL 856,663,722 285,370,490  1,142,034,212 421,804,313 70,505,083 492,309,396
XXII.  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND

DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS (Net) - - - - - g
22.1 Assets Held For Sale - - 5 - 4 5
22.2 Assets of Discontinued Operations - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 856,663,722 285,370,490  1,142,034,212 421,804,313 70,505,083 492,309,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETi
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET) AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
LIABILITIES Notes 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC Total TL FC Total

L DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR

TRADING - - . - - -
IL FUNDS BORROWED 12 779,797,433 284,001,391 1,063,798,824 360,408,392 69,609,051 430,017,443
(1IN FACTORING PAYABLES 13 382,635 205,323 587,958 10,545 212,998 223,543
v, LEASE OBLIGATIONS - - - - - .
4.1 Finance Lease Obligations - - - - - -
4.2 Operational Lease Obligations - - - - - -
43 Others - - - - . -
44 Deferred Finance Lease Expenses (-) - - - - - -
V. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) - - - - B -
5.1 Bills - - - - - -
5.2 Asset-Backed Securities - - - - - -
5.3 Bonds - - - . - -
VI OTHER PAYABLES 14 139,963 71,011 210,974 129,985 59,335 189,320
VIL OTHER LIABILITIES - - - - N N
VIIIL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR

RISK MANAGEMENT - - - . - -
8.1 Fair Value Hedges - - - - - -
8.2 Cash Flow Hedges - - - - - -
83 Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operations - - - - - -
IX. TAXES AND DUTIES PAYABLE 15 1,627,462 - 1,627,462 807,814 - 807,814
X. PROVISIONS 16 1,423,744 - 1,423,744 1,154,226 - 1,154,226
10.1 Restructuring Reserves - - - - - -
10.2 Reserves For Employee Benefits 1,310,600 - 1,310,600 803,609 - 803,609
10.3 Other Provisions 113,144 - 113,144 350,617 - 350,617
XI. DEFERRED INCOME 14 184,815 131,521 316,336 321,400 88,301 409,701
XIL CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES 17 - - - 1,545,940 - 1,545,940
X111, DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - - - - - -
X1v. SUBORDINATED LOANS - - - - - -

SUBTOTAL 783,556,052 284,409,246 1,067,965,298 364,378,302 69,969,685 434,347,987
XV. PAYABLES FOR ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND

ASSETS RELATED TO DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS - - - - - -
15.1 Payables Related to the Assets held for Sale - - - - - -
15.2 Payables Related to the Discontinued Operations - - - - - -
XIV. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 74,068,914 - 74,068,914 57,961,409 - 57,961,409
16.1 Paid-in Capital 18.1 55,500,000 - 55,500,000 46,500,000 - 46,500,000
16.2 Capital Reserves - - - - = N
16.2.1 Share Premiums - - - - - -
16.2.2 Share Cancellation Profits - - - - .
16.2.3 Other Capital Reserves - - - - - -
16.3 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income that will never

be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 18.2 (10,245) - (10,245) (21,079) - (21,079)
164 Accumulated Other Comprehensive [ncome that are or may

be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - - - - - -
16.5 Profit Reserves 18.3 1,217,832 - 1,217,832 383,110 - 383,110
16.5.1 Legal Reserves 1,217,832 - 1,217,832 383,110 - 383,110
16.5.2 Statutory Reserves - - - . N .
16.5.3 Extraordinary Reserves - - - . - -
16.5.4 Other Profit Reserves - - - - - -
16.6 Profit or Loss 17,361,327 - 17,361,327 11,099,378 - 11,099,378
16.6.1 Prior Periods Profit/Loss 1,264,656 - 1,264,656 1,117,440 - 1,117,440
16.6.2 Net Income or Loss for the Current Period 16,096,671 - 16,096,671 9,981,938 - 9,981,938

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'

EQUITY 857,624,966 284409246 1,142,034,212 422,339,711 69,969,685 492,309,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Audited

Current Period

31 December 2016

Audited
Prior Period

31 December 2015

Notes TL FC Total TL FC Total

L REVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS 2,571,349 29,375,314 31,946,663 1,155,372 18,881,086 20,036,458
1L IRREVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS 506,410,612 5,769,181 512,179,793 142,890,711 556,230 143,446,941
IIL. COLLATERALS RECEIVED 4,28 13,707,289473  6,211,489,174 19,918,778,647  6,236,272,288 1,925,248,166 8,161,520,454
v. COLLATERALS GIVEN 361,256 - 361,256 26,453,056 - 26,453,056
V. COMMITMENTS - . - - - -
5.1 Irrevocable Commitments - g - - -
5.2 Revocable Commitments - - =
5.2.1 Lease Commitments . - - - &
5.2.1.1 Financial Lease Commitments - - - . "
5.2.1.2 Operational Lease Commitments - - o 8 - &
5.2.2  Other Revocable Commitments " i z i “
VI. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - - - - N -
6.1 Derivative Financial Instruments for Risk Management - -
6.1.1  Fair Value Hedges ! i = -
6.1.2  Cash Flow Hedges a i - -
6.1.3  Net Foreign Investment Hedges - - - _
6.2 Trading Derivatives i - a
6.2.1 Forward Foreign Currency Purchases/Sales - - - -
6.2.2  Swap Purchases/Sales - - .
6.2.3  Put/Call Options - - # = =
6.2.4  Futures Purchases/Sales - - - - B -
6.2.5 Others - - - - ol N
VII. ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY 329,514,185 29,075,161 358,589,346 196,224,623 13,146,686 209,371,309

TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 14,546,146,875  6,275,708,830 20,821,855,705  6,602,996,050 1,957,832,168 8.560,828,218

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIiRKETI
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated )

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS 1 January — 31 December 1 January — 31 December
Notes 2016 2015
L OPERATING INCOME 19 133,747,633 60,969,399
FACTORING INCOME 133,747,633 60,969,399
1.1 Factoring Interest Income 124,197,844 57,436,859
[NN] Discounted 44,981,198 19,403,913
112 Other 79,216,646 38,032,946
12 Factoring Commission Income 9,549,789 3,532,540
1.2.1 Discounted 1,517,226 950,028
122 Other 8,032,563 2,582,512
1L FINANCING EXPENSES (-) 20 (80,338,079) (37,763,067)
21 Interest Expense on Funds Borrowed (79,451,553) (37.142,415)
22 Interest Expense on Factoring Payables - -
2.3 Interest Expense on Financial Leases - -
24 Interest Expense on Debt Secunties Issued - -
25 Other Interest Expenses - -
26 Fees and Commission Expenses (886,526) (620,652)
I1L. GROSS PROFIT / LOSS (1+1I) 53,409,554 23,206,332
v, OPERATING EXPENSES (-) 24 (14,563,381) (11,161,735)
4.1 Personnel Expenses (10,063,731) (7,374,577)
42 Provision Expense for Employee Termination Indemnity (63,936) (28,202)
43 Research and Development Expenses - -
44 General Administrative Expenses (3,861,650) (3,458,956)
45 Other (574,064) (300,000)
V. GROSS OPERATING PROFIT / LOSS (I1I+1V) 38,846,173 12,044,597
VI OTHER OPERATING INCOME 2 18,747,913 7,156,479
6.1 Interest Income on Banks 9.619 49,237
6.2 Interest Income on Reverse Repurchase Agreements - -
6.3 Interest Income on Securities - -
6.3.1 Interest Income on Trading Financial Assets -
6.3.2 Interest Income on Financial Assets Valued at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
6.3.3 Interest Income on Financial Assets Available-for-Sale - -
634 Interest Income on Investments Held to Maturity - -
6.4 Dividend Income - -
6.5 Trading Account Income - -
6.5.1 Derivatives - -
652 Others - -
6.6 Foreign Exchange Gains 18,316,197 4,182,574
6.7 her 422,097 2,924,668
VIL SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES (-) 23 {18,678,589) {1,861,628)
VIIL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) 24 (18,167,816) (4,069,916)
8.1 Impairment in Value of Securities - -
8.1.1 Impairment in Value of Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
812 Impairment in Value of Fi ial Assets Available-for-Saly -
8.1.3 Impairment in Value of Investments Held to Maturity - -
8.2 Impairment in Value of Non Current Assets - -
8.2.1 Impairment in Value of Tangible Assets - -
822 Impairment in Value of Assets Held for Sale and Assets Related to Discontinued Operations - -
8.23 Impairment in Value of Goodwill - -
8.2.4 Impairment in Value of Other Intangible Assets - -
825 Impairment in Value of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint-Ventures - -
83 Trading Account Losses from Financial Derivatives - -
8.4 Foreign Exchange Losses (18,108,601) (3,977,002)
85 Other (59,215) (92,914)
IX. OPERATIONAL PROFIT/LOSS (V+.....+VIII) 20,747,681 13,269,532
X. INCOME RESULTED FROM MERGER - -
XI. GAIN/LOSS ON NET MONETARY POSITION - -
XIL PROFIT/LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAXES (IX+X+XTI) 20,747,681 13,269,532
XIIL PROVISION FOR TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (&) 25 (4,651,010) (3,287,594)
13.1 Current Tax Charge 17,25 (4,949,727) (3,139,594)
132 Deferred Tax Charge (-} 10 - (148,000)
133 Deferred Tax Benefit (+) 10 298,717 -
XIv. NET PROFIT/LOSS AFTER TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS(XI1£XIII) 16,096,671 9,981,938
XV. INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
15.1 Income from Assets Held for Sale - -
15.2 Income from Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint-Ventures - -
153 Other Income From Discontinued Operations - -
XVL EXPENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) - -
16.1 Expense From Assets Held for Sale - B
16.2 Expense from Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint-Ventures - -
16.3 Other expense from Discontinued Operations - -
XVIL PROFTT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
XVIIL PROVISION FOR TAXES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (+) - -
18.1 Current Tax Charge - -
18.2 Deferred Tax Benefit (+) - -
183 Deferred Tax Charge (-) - -
XIX. NET INCOME/LOSS AFTER TAXES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - =
XX. NET PROFIT/LOSS 16,096,671 9,981,938
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings Per Share from Continuing Operations 26 0.2900 0.1799
Earnings Per Share from Discontinuing Operations - -

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Eamnings Per Share from Continuing Operations - =
Earnings Per Share from Discontinuing Operations 26 0.2900 0.1799

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS OR OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated)

Audited
Current Period
1 January - 31 December

Audited
Prior Period
1 January — 31 December

PROFIT/LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2016 2015
L NET PROFIT/LOSS 16,096,671 9,981,938
I OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10,834 (21,079)
2.1 Items that will never be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 10,834 (21,079)
2.11 Revaluation of Tangible Assets - -
212 Revaluation of Intangible Assets - -
213 Remeasurement of Reserve for Employee Benefits 13,543 (26,349)
214 Other Comprehensive Income that will never Reclassified to Profit or Loss - B
2.1.5 Related Tax (2,709) 5,270
2.1.5.1  Current Tax Benefit/Charge - -
2.1.52  Deferred Tax Benefit/Charge (-) (2,709) 5,270
22 Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
2.2.1 Foreign Currency Translation Differences - B
222 Assets Held for Sales- Net Change in Fair Value - -
223 Cash Flow Hedges- Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value - -
224 Net Investment Hedge Income/Losses - .
225 Other Comprehensive Income that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
2.2.6 Related Tax - 5
2.2.6.1  Current Tax Benefit/Charge - -
2.2.6.2  Deferred Tax Benefit/Charge (-) - .
1L TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (I+1I) - b
XXIIl.  TOTAL PROFIT / LOSS ACCOUNTED FOR THE PERIOD 16,107,505 9,960,859

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
1 January - 31 1 January - 31
Notes December 2016 December 2015

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1.1 Operating Profit Before Changes in Operating Assets And Liabilities 38,982,318 14,425,050
1.1.1 !nterests Received/Lease Income 117,340,149 54,015,797
1.1.2  Interest Paid / Lease Expenses (80,338,079) (37,763,067)
1.1.3  Lease Expenses - S
1.1.4 Dividends Received - S
1.1.5 Fees and Commissions Received 9,549,789 6,455,736
1.1.6 Other Income 570,478 114,130
1.1.7 Collections from Non-performing Receivables 217,989 864,723
1.1.8  Payments to Personnel and Service Suppliers (8,775,780) (7.412,329)
1.1.9 Taxes Paid 17 (5,919,869) (1,593,654)
1.1.10 Others 6,337,641 (256,286)
1.2 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (37,703,069) (14,447,376)
1.2.1  Net (Increase) Decrease in Factoring Receivables (659,724,417) (117,942,505)
122 Net (Increase) Decrease in Financing Loans - e
1.2.3  Net (Increase) Decrease in Lease Receivables - -
1.2.4 Net (Increase) Decrease in Other Assets 4,755,715 1,212,976
1.2.5  Net Increase (Decrease) in Factoring Payables 364,415 223,543
1.2.6 Net Increase (Decrease) in Lease Payables - -
1.2.7 Net Increase (Decrease) in Funds Borrowed 622,884,221 102,250,296
1.2.8  Net Increase (Decrease) in Matured Payables - -
1.2.9 Net Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (5,983,003) (191,686)
I Net Cash From Operating Activities 1,279,249 (22,326)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2.1 Cash Paid for Purchase Of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint-ventures - -
2.2 Cash Obtained From Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint-Ventures - =
2.3 Purchases of Tangible and Intangible Assets 7 (234,643) (775,814)
2.4 Sale of Tangible and Intangible Assets (93) -
2.5 Cash Paid for Purchase of Financial Assets Available for Sale - (5.257)
2.6  Proceeds From Sale of Financial Assets Available for Sale - -
2.7 Cash Paid for Purchase of Held-to-Maturity Investment Securities - -
2.8 Cash Obtained from Sale of Held-to-Maturity Investment Securities - -
2.9  Other 8 (243,205) (200,489)
1L Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (477,941) (981,560)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
3.1 Cash Obtained From Funds Borrowed and Securities Issued - -
3.2 Cash Used for Repayment of Funds Borrowed and Securities Issued g -
33 Equity Instruments Issued - -
34  Dividends Paid - -
3.5  Payments for Finance Leases . =
3.6  Other =
L. Net Cash Generated from in Financing Activities - -
Iv.  Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equivalents - -
V. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 801,308 (1,003,886)
VL.  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 2.21 1,161,999 2,165,885
VII, Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 2.2.1 1,963,307 1,161,999

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI
STATEMENT OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Current Period‘"

Prior Period

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
I DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT
1.1 CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT 20,747,681 13,269,532
1.2 TAXES AND LEGAL DUTIES PAYABLE (-) (4,651,010) (3,287,594)
1.2.1  Corporate Tax (Income Tax) (4.949,727) (3,139,594)
1.2.2  Withholding Tax - -
1.2.3  Other Taxes and Duties 298,717 (148,000)
A. NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (1.1-1.2) 16,096,671 9,981,938
13 ACCUMULATED LOSSES (-) - -
1.4 FIRST LEGAL RESERVES (-) - (834,722)
1.5 OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES (-)® - -
B NET PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION [(A-(1.3+1.4+1.5)] 16,096,671 9,147,216
1.6 FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.6.1  To Owners of Ordinary Shares - -
1.6.2  To Owners of Privileged Shares - -
1.6.3  To Owners of Redeemed Shares - -
1.6.4  To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
1.6.5  To Holders of Profit and Loss Sharing Certificates - -
1.7 DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-) - -
1.8 DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-) - -
1.9 SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.9.1  To Owners of Ordinary Shares - -
192 To Owners of Privileged Shares - -
1.9.3  To Owners of Redeemed Shares - -
1.9.4  To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
1.9.5  To Holders of Profit and Loss Sharing Certificates - -
1.10  SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
1.11 STATUS RESERVES (-) - -
1.12 EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES - -
1.13  OTHER RESERVES - 9,147,216
1.14  SPECIAL FUNDS - -
1L DISTRIBUTION FROM RESERVES - -
2.1 DISTRIBUTION OF RESERVES - -
22 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
2.3 DIVIDENTS TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
2.3.1  To Owners of Ordinary Shares - -
2.3.2  To Owners of Privileged Shares - -
233  To Owners of Redeemed Shares - -
2.3.4  To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
23.5  To Holders of Profit and Loss Sharing Certificates - E
2.4 DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-) - -
25 DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-) - -
111 EARNINGS PER SHARE
31 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES 0,2900 0,1799
3.2 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%) 29.00 17.99
33 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES - -
34 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES (%) - -
Iv. DIVIDEND PER SHARE - -
4.1 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES - =
4.2 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%) - 8
43 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES - -
44 TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES (%) - o

(0]
@

Profit distribution related to year 2016 will be decided at the General Assembly.
Deferred tax income is not subject to profit distribution.
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2.1.1

HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Halk Faktoring A§ was incorporated on 6 June 2012 to provide factoring services. The Company
maintains its operations factoring, that is a financial product which ensure "guarantee", "finance" and
“collection” services by way of assignment to a company called "factor" of the trade receivables arising
from sale of goods and/or services by firms to within the country.

The company serves both domestic factoring services. The Company operates in accordance with
“Financial Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies Law” published on the Official Gazette no. 28496
dated 13 December 2012 and “Regulation on Principles for Establishment and Operations of Finance
Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies” of Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (BRSA).

As at 31 December 2016, the number of employees of the Company is 70 (31 December 2015: 72).
The Company is registered in Turkey and located in the address below:
Resitpasa Mah. Eski Biiyiikdere Cad. No:14 Park Plaza Kat:13 34398 Maslak-Sartyer/ ISTANBUL.

The Company carries its operations mainly in one geographical region (Turkey).

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Preparation
Accounting Standards Applied

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with “Communiqué Uniform Chart
of Accounts to be implemented by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies and its
Explanation as well as the Form and Scope of Financial Statements to be announced to Public” published
on the Official Gazette n0.28861 dated 24 December 2013 promulgated by Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency (“BRSA”), Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS”), Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS™) and the appendices and interpretations promulgated by the Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standarts Authority (“POA”) and the statements and guidance published by
BRSA on accounting and financial reporting principles (together referred to as “BRSA Accounting and
Reporting Legislation”).

The financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue as at 15 March 2017. The General Assembly
and/ or legal authorities have the discretion of making changes in the accompanying financial statements
after their issuance.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Functional and Presentation Currency

The presentation and functional currency of the Company is Turkish Lira (“TL™).
Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

In preparation of the financial statements, the significant estimates and judgments are not used by the
Company.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The material changes in accounting policies are applied on a retrospective basis and the comparative

financial statements are restated. There has not been any significant change in the accounting policies
of the Company in the current year.

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted
The standards and interpretations adopted in 2016

The Company applied all of the relevant and required standards TAS/TFRSs and related interpretations
as at 31 December 2016.

Standards and interpretations not yet issued as at 31 December 2016

There have been new standards and interpretations not yet adopted to the accompanying financial statements
as at and for the interim period ended 31 December 2016 and have not been applied in preparing these
financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are set out below:

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

As amended in December 2012, the new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. Phase 1 of this new TFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring
financial assets and liabilities. The amendments made to TFRS 9 will mainly affect the classification
and measurement of financial assets and measurement of fair value option (FVO) liabilities and requires
that the change in fair value of a FVO financial liability attributable to credit risk is presented under
other comprehensive income. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing
the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Company.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued)
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

As issued in September 2016, the new standard replaces existing TFRS guidance and introduces a new
control-based revenue recognition model for contracts with customers. In the new standard, total
consideration measured will be the amount to which the Company expects to be entitled, rather than fair
value and new guidance have been introduced on separating goods and services in a contract and
recognizing revenue over time. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with early adoption permitted under TFRS. The Company is in the process of assessing
the impact of the amendment on financial position or performance of the Company

Improvements to IFRSs

The IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 20142016 Cycle. The amendments are effective as
of 1 January 2018. Earlier application is permitted. The Company does not expect that these amendments
will have significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
IFRS 1 “First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”

IFRS 1 is amended to clarify that the deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters related
to disclosures for financial instruments, employee benefits and consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

The amendments clarify that the entity is not required to disclose summarized financial information for
that subsidiary, joint venture or associate under the requirements of IFRS 12, when an entity’s interest
in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate)
is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale in accordance with IFRS
5.

148 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

The amendment enable when an investment in an associate or a joint venture is held by, or is held
indirectly through, an entity that is a venture capital organization, or a mutual fund, unit trust and similar
entities including investment-linked insurance funds, the entity may elect to measure that investment at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9.

11
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Preparation (Continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by POA

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the
IASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements. However, these
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued to
TFRS by the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. Such standards, interpretations and
amendments that are issued by the IASB but not yet issued by the POA are referred to as IFRS or IAS.
The Company will make the necessary changes to its financial statements after the new standards and
interpretations are issued and become effective under TFRS.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Hedge Accounting and amendments to TFRS 9, TFRS 7 and TAS
39 -IFRS 9 (2013)

In November 2013, the IASB issued a new version of IFRS 9, which includes the new hedge accounting
requirements and some related amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7. Entities may make an accounting
policy choice to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of IAS 39 for all of their hedging
transactions. Further, the new standard removes the 1 January 2015 effective date of IFRS 9. The new
version of IFRS 9 issued after IFRS 9 (2013) introduces the mandatory effective date of 1 January 2018
for IFRS 9, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the
standard on financial position or performance of the Company.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)

IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement
of financial instruments including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on
financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance
on recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments from TAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is
in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the
Company.

IFRIC 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The amendments clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation covers foreign currency transactions when an
entity recognizes a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration before the entity recognizes the related asset, expense or income. The date of the
transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the
non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt. The amendment is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 J anuary 2018 with earlier application is permitted.
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or
performance of the Company.

12
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2.1.8

HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Preparation (Continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by POA (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows — Disclosure Initiative

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows has been amended as part of the IASB’s broader disclosure initiative to
improve presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The amendments will require disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes. The amendments are
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted. The
Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or
performance of the Company.

Changes in Accounting estimates and errors

If the changes in accounting estimates relate to a specific period, they are applied in the period they
relate to whereas if the changes are related to future periods, they are applied both in the period the
change is made and prospectively in the future periods. There has not been any significant change in
the accounting estimates of the Company in the current year.

Material accounting errors are adjusted retrospectively and prior periods’ financial statements are
restated.

Comparative Information and Restatement of Prior Period Financial Statements

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared comparatively with the prior period in order
to give information about financial position and performance. If the presentation or classification of
the financial statements is changed, in order to maintain consistency, financial statements of the prior
periods are also reclassified in line with the related changes with respective disclosures for the major
differences.

Offsetting

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the financial
statements if and only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneousl



2.2
(a)

HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies

Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise factoring receivables, banks and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

Cash at banks comprises time deposits with an original maturity less than three months. Cash at banks
reflects short-term investments; highly liquid, with an original maturity less than three months. Time
deposits are recognised at discounted values by using effective interest rate.

The Company initially recognizes factoring receivables and payables on the date that they are originated.
Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, factoring receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impaired losses.

In accordance with the “Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies” published in the Official Gazette dated 24 December
2013 and numbered 28861 and effective from 1 January 2008 the “Communiqué on Procedures and
Principles for the Provisions to be set aside by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies
for their Receivables” published in the Official Gazette dated 20 July 2007 and numbered 26588 by
BRSA, some parts of factoring receivable which provide criterias, is transferred to account of non-
performing receivables and after the elimination of special provision, the rest of amount is shown on
financial statements.

Interest income and expense are accounted as described in Note 2.2.(h).

Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Company’s contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial assets expire or if the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without
retaining control or with all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits itself to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract
expire or are discharged or cancelled.

14
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tangible Assets

Tangible assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of tangible assets is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of tangible assets are
recognized in the income statement as incurred.

(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of tangible assets.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Definition Year
Furniture and fixtures 4-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Leasehold 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the periods of the respective leases or useful
lives on a straight-line basis.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software licenses and rights. Acquired computer software licenses
are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These
costs are amortized over their useful lives. Costs that are directly associated with the development of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets.

Definition Year
Computer software licenses 3 years

15
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

Provision for doubtful factoring receivables, are recognized as an expense and reduced from the profit
for the year. Provision for non-performing receivables is allocated assessing the Company’s factoring
receivable portfolio, quality and risk and considering the economic conditions and other factors
including the related legislation against the potential losses that may be resulted from the current
factoring receivables. In accordance with the “Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial
Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies” published in the Official Gazette
dated 24 December 2013 numbered 28861, the Company’s specific provision rate allocated for the
finance factoring receivables considering their collaterals are as follows: 20%, at a minimum, for
factoring receivables overdue more than 90 days not exceeding 180 days, 50%, at a minimum, for
factoring receivables overdue more than 180 days not exceeding 360 days; and 100%, at a minimum,
for factoring receivables overdue more than 1 year after taking into account for the collateral received.

The factoring receivables that have not been collected for less than a year classified as “Receivables to
liquidate” under the doubtful receivables; while the factoring receivables that have not been collected to
more than a year are classified as ‘uncollectible receivables’.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is
recognised in the income statement.

Non-Financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates
cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised
in the income statement.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years other assets are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

16



2.2
(e

®

(®

HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital increases

Share capital increases from existing shareholders are accounted for at par value as approved at the
annual meeting of shareholders.

Reserve for severance payments

In accordance with the existing social legislation in Turkey, the Company is required to make lump-sum
payments to employees whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than
resignation or misconduct. Those payments are calculated with basis of taking the upper limit of
severance payment at the balance sheet date.

In accordance with TAS 19, “Employee Benefits”, the Company calculated the severance pay liability
incurred due to retirement of its employees by discounting the future liabilities to their present values,
by using statistical method and reflected to the financial statements. The main estimates used are as
follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Discount Rate 4.00 % 3.85%
Interest Rate 11.25% 10.50 %
Expected Salary/Limit Increase Rate 6.50 % 6.40 %
Expected severance payment benefit ratio 100 % 100 %

Provision, contingent assets and liabilities

In accordance with TAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, a provision is
recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the specified criteria
are not met, the Company discloses the related issues in the accompanying notes. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability if the time value of the
money is significant to the provision.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the notes and not recognized unless it is realized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income and expense recognition

Factoring income

Factoring interest and commission income is recognized on accrual basis using effective interest method.
Other interest income

Other interest income recognized on accrual basis using effective interest method.

Other operation income and expense

Other operation income and expense is recognized on accrual basis.

Income tax
Tax provision of the period includes the current (corporate tax) and deferred tax.

Corporate Tax

Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

According to TAS 12, “Income Taxes”; deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the accompanying
financial statements, using the balance sheet method, on all taxable temporary differences to the extent that they
are expected to increasing or decrease on the income tax payable in the period when they will reverse. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deferred tax asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates that are expected to be valid
at the time that the temporary differences will close.

Valuation of assets on the statement of income as a result of these differences and deferred tax income or expense
in the income statement on the relevant valuation of the asset is accounted for in equity as a result of the differences,
the related deferred tax effect is also recognized in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties

In accordance with TAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures” shareholders, key management and board
members, in each case together with companies controlled by or affiliated with them, and associated
companies are considered and referred to as related parties. Related party transactions consist of the
transfer of the assets and liabilities between related parties by a price or free of charge.

For the purpose of the accompanying financial statements, shareholders of the Company the companies
controlled by/associated with them, key management and the Board members of the Company are
referred to as “related parties”.

Subsequent events

Subsequent events mean the events occurred between the reporting date and the authorization date for
the announcement of the financial statements. In accordance with TAS 10, “Subsequent Events”; post-
balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the balance
sheet dates (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-balance sheet events that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

Statement of cash flows

The Company prepares cash flow statements to inform the users of the financial statements about the
changes in its net assets, its financial structure and its ability to affect the amount and timing of its cash
flows with respect to changing external conditions.

In the statement of cash flows, cash flows of the period are reported with a classification based on
operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flows from operating activities represent cash flows
from activities within the scope of business. Cash flows relating to investment activities represent cash
flows used and generated from investment activities (fixed investments and financial investments). Cash
flows relating to financing activities represent the sources of financing the Company used and the
repayments of these sources.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Cash 1,215 421
Banks 1,962,092 1,161,578
-Time deposits - -
-Demand deposits 1,962,092 1,161,578
1,963,307 1,161,999
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Segment reporting

There is no segment that management of the Company performs the assessment of financial
perfomances and decide the resource allocation.

Foreign currency transactions

Income and expenses deriving from transactions in foreign currencies have been translated into TL
at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into TL at the exchange rates prevailing at
the reporting date. Exchange gains or losses arising from conversion of foreign currency items have
been included in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to TL at the exchange rate at the date that
the fair value was determined.

The foreign exchange rates used by the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

US Dollar 3.5318 2.9076

Euro 3.6939 3.1776

GB Pound 4.3222 4.3007
Leases

The rental income in which important portion of owner’s risks and rewards are transferred to the
leaseholder is classified as financial lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals
income under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share presented in the accompanying income statement is determined by dividing net
income by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.In Turkey, companies can
increase their share capitals by issue of “Bonus Shares” to their shareholders from their retained
earnings. In computing earnings per share, such issues of “Bonus Shares” are treated as issued shares.
Accordingly, the retrospective effect for those share issues is taken into consideration in determining
the weighted-average number of shares outstanding used in this computation.

Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks during the course of its operations:
e Credit risk

* Liquidity risk

e Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

BASIS OF THE PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Main activity of the Company is provide factoring services by dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defaults and operates regarding to the limits approved by “Credit and Risk
Committee™.

All credit risk policies are assessed within the framework of “Credit and Risk Committee
Regulations” approval authorizations. The Company’s exposure to credit risks and credit ratings of
its counterparties are monitored periodically. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits
that are reviewed and approved by the Risk Committee.

On the other hand credit evaluations are performed on all sector basis balanced. The Main Operation
Department conducts the operations. The Branches does not have operation or payment authority.

Liquidity risk
The Company usually creates funds by liquidating short term financial instruments, such as
collecting its receivables and converting bank deposits into cash.

Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Company’s activities and in the management of
positions. It includes both risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and
risk of being unable to liquidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame.The
Company meets its liquidity requirementsthrough credit lines in the Banks. The Company’s policy
is to match cash out flows mainly arising from the repayments of the fund borrowed and cash inflows.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
Market risk management, control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while aiming
to optimize the return of risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed currency risk due to its factoring operations in foreign currencies, cash at
bank balances and financial borrowings. As at 31 December 2016, the balance of foreign exchange
borrowing is TL 16,168,515 (31 December 2015: TL 12,534,444).

Interest rate risk

The Company’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different times or in
differing amounts. Risk management activities are aimed at optimizing net interest income, given
market interest rate levels consistent with the Company’s business strategies.
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AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated. )

BANKS
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 cash at banks are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC

-Demand deposits 1,585,577 376,515 552,188 609,390
-Time deposits - - - -
1,585,577 376,515 552,188 609,390

Bank account consists of time and demand deposit. As at 31 December 2016, there is no time deposit
(31 December 2015: None).

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there is no blockage on demand deposits.
FACTORING RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, factoring receivables are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC
Factoring Receivables-
Discounted
Domestic factoring receivables 234,044,376 249,705,257 182,301,798 6,226,170
Export factoring receivables - - - -
Unearned factoring income (7,819,268) (493,905) (6,462,132) (11,297)
226,225,108 249,211,352 175,839,666 6,214,873
Other Factoring Receivables
Domestic factoring receivables 623,411,638 - 240,108,631 -
Foreign factoring receivables - 35,680,484 - 63,656,954
623,411,638 35,680,484 240,108,631 63,656,954
Factoring receivables, net 849,636,746 284,891,836 415,948,297 69,871,827

As at 31 December 2016, amount of guarantees received for factoring receivables is TL
19,918,778,647 (31 December 2015: TL 8,161,520,454. ) (Note 28).

As at 31 December 2016 foreign currency indexed factoring receivables is amounting to TL
16,190,733 (31 December 2015: 12,611,997 ).
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FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the breakdown of total factoring receivables
including non-performing receivables by industrial groups is as follows:

31 December 2016

%

31 December 2015

%

Cultural, entertainment and sport 302,029,044 27% 120,325,246 25%
Petroleum rafinery products 222,261,643 20% 38,238,445 8%
Communication 119,351,997 11% 55,929,130 11%
Construction 86,841,078 8% 45,761,091 9%
Sale of motor vehicles 55,408,500 5% 32,175,000 0%
Electricity gas and water supply 54,037,500 5% 51,050,000 10%
Textile and textile products 45,502,989 4% 30,752,478 6%
Factoring companies 38,110,005 3% 7,375,890 2%
Fabricated metal products industry 22,287,417 2% 16,540,858 3%
Health and social services 16,189,874 1% 5,106,805 1%
Plastic 14,735,750 1% 13,286,064 3%
Other manufacturing industry 14,630,901 1% 15,212,709 3%
Electric and non-electric household appliances 13,807,278 1% 11,026,700 2%
Road freight transportation 13,443,862 1% 4,386,766 1%
Sale of motor vehicles spare parts and
accessories 10,603,215 1% 787,726,000 0%
Metal industry and mining products 10,542,997 1% 2,210,761 0%
Machinery and equipment 9,535,245 1% 5,158,426 1%
Chemical and chemical products industry 6,172,863 1% 1,570,751 0%
Medicines 5,343,902 0% 690,492,000 0%
Food and beverage industry 5,049,550 0% 6,402,268 1%
Cement lime and gypsum production 4,577,768 0% 238,816,000 0%
Furniture industry 4,507,676 0% 2,757,122 1%
Textile and textile products industry 4,458,264 0% 1,324,495 0%
Tile marble flat stones 4,090,069 0% 2,679,340 1%
Hotels 4,014,704 0% 154,656,000 0%
Garmen industry 3,882,456 0% 3,014,869 1%
Metal industry 3,350,253 0% 11,694,610 2%
Radio tv tape video equipment and devices
industry 3,305,868 0% 1,221,588 0%
Wholesale trade and brokerage 3,263,469 0% 723,568,000 0%
Other 33,192,445 3% 31,229,869 6%
Total 1,134,528,582 100% 486,883,714 100%
Natures of factoring receivables are as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Domestic irrevocable 279,982,840 -
Foreign irrevocable 15,688,808 54,485,188
Domestic revocable 818,865,258 417,011,886
Foreign revocable 19,991,676 15,386,640
1,134,528,582 486,883,714
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OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 Company’s other receivables are as follows:

31 Arahk 2016 31 Arahk 2015
TL FC TL FC
Customer Banking and Insurance
Transaction Taxes Receivable 1,004,770 72,117 808,580 34
1,004,770 72,117 808,580 34

NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES

Details of the Company’s non-performing factoring receivables and provisions allocated for them as

at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC
Factoring Receivables Under
Follow-up (90 — 180 days) 18,379,067 - 1,467,824 -
Factoring Receivables Under
Follow-up (180 — 360 days) 4,936,627 - 4,450,860 -
_Specific provision (23,315,694) - (4,855,094) -
Non-performing receivables(Net) - - 1,063,590 -

Aging of non-performing factoring receivables and specific provision allocated for them as at 31

December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Total doubtful Total doubtful
factoring factoring
receivables Allowance receivables Allowance
No Overdue 1,380,676 (1,380,676) - -
Overdue 1 to 3 months 156,549 (156,549) - -
Overdue 3 to 6 months 833,195 (833,195) 175,573 (87,786)
Overdue 6 to 12 months 16,053,667 (16,053,667) 1,293,114 (317,311)
Overdue over 1 year 4,891,607 (4,891,607) 4,449,997 (4,449,997)
Total 23,315,694 (23,315,694) 5,918,684 (4,855,094)

Movements in specific provision for factoring receivables during the years ended 31 December are as

follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 4,855,094 5,106,490
Provision for the period (Note 23) 18,678,589 1,861,628
Recoveries during the period (-)(Note 22) (217,989) (2,113,024)
Balance at the end of the period 23,315,694 4,855,094
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TANGIBLE ASSETS

Movements of tangible assets for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as
follows:

Machinery
and Furniture Leasehold

equipment  and fixtures improvements Total
Cost
Opening balance, 1 January 2016 579,468 391,940 435,540 1,406,948
Additions 203,370 16,347 14,926 234,643
Disposals (1,699) - - (1,699)
Closing balance, 31 December 2016 781,139 408,287 450,466 1,639,892
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance, 1 January 2016 (188,545) (119,232) (218,892)  (526,669)
Additions (157,437) (74,500) (75,675  (307,612)
Disposals 1,604 - - 1,604
Closing balance, 31 December 2016 (344,378) (193,732) (294,567)  (832,677)
Net carrying value 436,761 214,555 155,899 807,215

Machinery

and Furniture Leasehold

equipment  and fixtures improvements Total
Cost
Opening balance, 1 January 2015 324,869 148,152 166,259 639,280
Additions 262,745 243,788 269,281 775,814
Disposals (8,146) - - (8,146)
Closing balance, 31 December 2015 579,468 391,940 435,540 1,406,948
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance, 1 January 2015 (90,034) (53,208) (67,556)  (210,798)
Additions (101,400) (66,024) (151,336) (318,760)
Disposals 2,889 - - 2,889
Closing balance, 31 December 2015 (188,545) (119,232) (218,892) (526,669)
Net carrying value 390,923 272,708 216,648 880,279

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there is no tangibles assets acquired through
financial lease.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movements of intangible assets for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are
as follows:

Computer

Software Licenses Total
Cost
Opening balance, 1 January 2016 353,807 218,658 572,465
Additions 243,205 - 243,205
Disposals - - -
Closing balance, 31 December 2016 597,012 218,658 815,670
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance, 1 January 2016 (301,588) (46,374) (347,962)
Additions (79,777) (65,116) (144,893)
Closing balance - - -
Closing balance, 31 December 2016 (381,365) (111,490) (492,855)
Net carrying value 215,647 107,168 322,815

Computer

Software Licences Total
Cost
Opening balance, 1 January 2015 318,334 53,642 371,976
Additions 35,473 165,016 200,489
Disposals - - -
Closing balance, 31 December 2015 353,807 218,658 572,465
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance, 1 January 2015 (218,078) (6,460) (224,538)
Additions (83,510) (39,914) (123,424)
Closing balance - - -
Closing balance, 31 December 2015 (301,588) (46,374) (347,962)
Net carrying value 52,219 172,284 224,503

PREPAID EXPENSES
Prepaid expenses as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC

Insurance expense 381,932 - 279,833 -
Prepaid contribution fee - 30,022 - 23,832
Total 381,932 30,022 279,833 23,832
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10 DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES
Deferred tax is recognized over the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities based on the temporary differences calculated by the prevailing tax rate are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

Deferred tax asset
Uneamned interest income 1,725,902 1,376,626
Allowance for doubtful factoring receivables - 24,940
Employee bonus accrual 187,712 130,000
Reserve for employee benefits 74,408 30,722
Tax base differences in tangible and intangible assets - 5,886
Other provisions 31,731 62,466
Total deferred tax asset 2,019,753 1,630,640
Deferred tax liabilities (93,105) -
Deferred tax asset / (liabilities), net 1,926,648 1,630,640

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
Opening balance 1,630,640 1,773,370
Deferred tax (expense) / income 298,717 (148,000)
Other comprehensive income (2,709) 5,270
1,926,648 1,630,640
11 OTHER ASSETS
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of other assets are as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Advances given (Personnel) 6,038 - 394,405 -
Other 20,366 21,571 -
26,404 - 415,976 -
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12 FUNDS BORROWED
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of funds borrowed are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Bank loans 779,797,433 284,001,391 360,408,392 69,609,051
779,797,433 284,001,391 360,408,392 69,609,051

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 maturity distribution of loans used by the Company
are as follows:

Distribution of loans according to maturity 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Maturity less than 1 year 1,063,798,824 430,017,443
Total 1,063,798,824 430,017,443
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Short term financial liabilities
Short-term secured domestic bank loans 2,311,750 6,226,170
Short-term unsecured domestic bank loans 913,672,510 300,408,393
Short-term unsecured international bank loans 147,814,564 123,382,880
Total 1,063,798,824 430,017,443

(Short-term secured domestic bank loans consist of bonds given to Eximbank obtained from
customers.

As at 31 December 2016, foreign currency indexed borrowings have been presented in TL column
in the accompanying balance sheet TL 16,168,515 (31 December 2015:TL 12,534,444).

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Rate Amount in Amount in

Currency Maturity type Interest rate FC TL Interest rate FC TL
TL 2017 Fixed 10,50%-12,40% 779797433 779,797,433 | 13.25%-13.50% 360,408,392 360,408,392
Euro 2017 Fixed  0,50%-3,30% 23,314,679 86,122,763 [ 0.50%-2.47% 9,077,655 28,845,155
US Dollar 2017 Fixed  1,14%4,65% 55,499,117 196,011,782 | 1.70%-2.90% 13,984,881 40,662,442
GB Pound 2017 Fixed  1,50%-2,40% 431,920 1,866,846 |  1.40%-1.60% 23,590 101,454
1,063,798,824 430,017,443

13 FACTORING PAYABLES
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of factoring payables are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC
Revocable 382,635 - 10,545 -
Irrevocable - 205,323 - 212,998
382,635 205,323 10,545 212,998
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OTHER PAYABLES AND DEFERRED INCOME
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of other payables are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Other payables 134,699 71,011 114,027 59,335
Payables to personnel 5,264 - 15,958 -
139,963 71,011 129,985 59,335
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of deferred income are as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Unearned commission and
charge income 184,815 131,521 321,400 88,301
184,815 131,521 321,400 88,301

TAXES AND DUTIES PAYABLE
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of taxes and duties payables are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC

Banking and insurance
transaction taxes payable 1,201,272 - 604,872 -
Social security premium 308,044 - 100,589 -
Income tax payable 110,749 - 95,909 -
Other 7,397 - 6,444 -

1,627,462 - 807,814 -

PROVISIONS
As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, provisions are as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Provision for employee benefits
Employee bonus accrual 938,558 - 650,000 -
Reserve for employee severance
indemnity 158,174 ; 105,893 ;
Vacation pay liability 213,868 - 47,716 -
Other provisions
Other provisions 113,144 350,617
1,423,744 - 1,154,226 -
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HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

PROVISIONS (Continued)

Reserve for employee severance indemnity

In accordance with the existing social legislation in Turkey, the Company is required to make lump-
sum payments to employees whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other
than resignation or misconduct. The computation of the liability is based upon the retirement pay
ceiling announced by the Government. Such payments are calculated on the basis of 30 days’ pay
and limited to a maximum of TL 4,297 (31 December 2015: TL 3,828) as at 31 December 2016 per
year of employment at the rate of pay applicable at the date of retirement or termination.

Other provisions

As at 31 December 2016 TL 97,506 of other provisions consists of litigation provisions (31

December 2015: TL 300,000).

Movement of reserve for employee severance indemnity during the period ended 31 December 2016

is as follows:

1 January — 1 January —

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

Opening balance, 1 January 105,893 73,649
Service cost 70,566 16,965
Interest cost 11,149 3,259
Payment made during the period (15,891) (14,329)
Actuarial loss / (gain) (13,543) 26,349
Closing balance, 31 December 158,174 105,893

All actuarial losses and gains calculated are recognized under other comprehensive income.

Movements of vacation pay liability for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015

are as follows:

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Opening balance 47,716 39,381
Payment made during the period (92,422) (13,950)
Calculated during the period 258,574 22,285
Closing balance 213,868 47,716

Movements of employee bonus acrruals for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December

2015 are as follows:
31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Opening balance 650,000 659,536
Payment made during the period (648,613) (287,415)
Canceled during the period (1,387) (372,121)
Calculated during the period 938,558 650,000
Closing balance 938,558 650,000

CURRENT TAX ASSET /(LIABILITIES)

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has TL 970,394 tax assets (31 December 2015: TL None)
which is the difference between prepaid corporate taxes amounting to TL 5,919,869 and corporate
taxes payable amounting to TL 4,949,727. There is no tax losses as at 31 December 2016 (31

December 2015: TL 1,545,940).
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EQUITY
PAID-IN CAPITAL

The Company’s paid-in capital is amounting to TL 55,500,000 (31 December 2015: TL 46,500,000)
comprised of 55,500,000 (31 December 2015: 46,500,000) shares with each has a nominal value of
TL 1.

Paid-in capital of the Company was increased by TL 9,000,000 from retained earnings to TL
55,500,000 from TL 46,500,000 by the decision of General Assembly as at 21 April 2016.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Company’s shareholder structure is as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Amount Share Amount Share
T.Halk Bankasi AS 54,112,500 97.50 45,337,500 97.50
Halk Yatirim Menkul Degerler AS 688,200 1.24 576,600 1.24
Halk Finansal Kiralama AS 688,200 1.24 576,600 1.24
Halk Portfoy Yonetimi AS 5,550 0.01 4,650 0.01
Bilesim Alternatif Dagitim Kanallarn AS 5,550 0.01 4,650 0.01
Paid in capital 55,500,000 100 46,500,000 100

There is no preferred stock which represent the capital of the Company.

Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses Not Reclassified to Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2016, other comprehensive income or expenses not reclassified to profit or loss
is amounting to TL 10,245 (31 December 2015: TL 21,079).

Profit Reserves

As at 31 December 2016, profit reserve is amounting to TL 1,217,832 (31 December 2015: TL
383,110). By the decision of General Assembly meeting held on 16 April 2015, the Company
increased its legal reserves by TL 834,722 from its retained earnings.

Profit Distribution

Retained earnings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution.

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, in accordance with the Turkish Commercial
Code. The first legal reserve appropriated out of the statutory profit at the rate of 5% until the total
reserve reaches a maximum of 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital. The second legal reserve is
appropriated at the rate of 10% of all distributions in excess of 5% of the Company’s paid-in capital.
The first and second legal reserves are not available for distribution unless they exceed 50% of the
share capital but may be used to absorb losses in the event that the general reserve is exhausted.
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19 OPERATING INCOME
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 , details of operating income are as

follows:
2016 2015
Interest income on factoring receivables

- Discounted 44,981,198 19,403,913
- Other 79,216,646 38,032,946
124,197,844 57,436,859

Fees and commissions on factoring receivables
- Discounted 1,517,226 950,028
- Other 8,032,563 2,582,512
9,549,789 3,532,540
Operating Income 133,747,633 60,969,399

20 FINANCING COSTS

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of financing expenses are as

follows:
2016 2015
Interest expense on funds borrowed 79,451,553 37,142,415
Fees and commission expenses 886,526 620,652
Total 80,338,079 37,763,067
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21 OPERATING EXPENSES
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 , details of operating expenses are

as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Personnel expenses 10,063,731 7,374,577
Rent expenses 980,447 858,945
Other 574,062 381,786
Vehicle expenses 546,887 431,336
Depreciation and amortization expenses 452,505 442,184
Membership expenses 424,791 275,110
Communication expenses 261,136 198,373
Benefits and services provided outside 227,120 204,228
Advertisement expenses 210,041 32,962
IT expenses 180,769 318,129
Office expenses 165,885 151,389
Taxes and funds expense 161,466 231,831
Representation expenses 75,187 79,728
Travel and accommodation expenses 70,286 30,239
Provision for employe benefits 63,936 28,202
Stationary and printing expenses 53,607 66,149
Notary expenses 45,587 47,421
Repair and maintanence expense 5,938 9,146
Total 14,563,381 11,161,735

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of personnel expenses
included in operating expenses are as follows:

2016 2015
Wages and salaries 6,338,077 5,059,870
Bonuses and premiums 1,543,254 1,097,766
Social security premium employer’s share 1,217,126 799,790
Employee insurance expenses 425,248 253,935
Others 540,026 163,216
Total 10,063,731 7,374,577

22 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of other income are as

follows:
2016 2015
Foreign exchange gain 18,316,197 4,182,574
Collection income from non performing receivables (Note 6) 217,989 2,113,024
Interest received from banks 9,619 49,237
Other 204,108 811,644
Total 18,747,913 7,156,479
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SPECIFIC PROVISION FOR NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of specific allowance for
doubtful receivables are as follows:

2016 2015
Specific provision (Note 6) (18,678,589) 1,861,628
Total (18,678,589) 1,861,628

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, details of other expenses are as
follows:

2016 2015
Foreign exchange loss (18,108,601) 3,977,002
Other (59,215) 92,914
Total (18,167,816) 4,069,916

TAXATION

As at 31 December 2016, corporate income tax is levied at the rate of 20% (2015: 20%). Corporate
tax rate is levied on the statutory corporate income tax base, which is determined by modifying
accounting income for disallowable expenses and certain exclusions and allowances for tax purposes.
If the profit has not been distributed, it is not subject to any other tax.

Some of the deduction rates included in the 15th and 30th articles of the Law no. 5520 on the
Corporate Tax have been redefined according to the cabinet decision numbered 2006/10731, which
was announced at Trade Registry Gazette of 23 July 2006-26237. In this respect, withholding tax
rate on dividend payments, which are made to the companies except those are settled in Turkey or
generate income in Turkey via a business or a regular agent, was increased to 15% from 10%. When
applying the withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the
individuals, the withholding tax rates covered in the related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are taken
into account.

The transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law with the
heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing sets details about implementation. New
amendments to transfer pricing are in accordance with the principles of “transfer pricing manual” of
OECD.

If the tax payers have transactions like service taking or product and goods buying or selling with
related parties which are not in accordance with the counterpart principle it will be adjudge that
disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing. This kind of disguised profit distribution via transfer
pricing will not be deducted from the corporate tax. The companies are obliged to fill the transfer
pricing form attached to the annual corporate tax declaration. On this form, all the related party
transactions, amounts and the related Transfer Pricing methods are disclosed.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies
file their tax returns within four months following the closing date of the related financial year. Tax
returns are open for five years from the beginning of the year that follows the date of filing during
which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting records
on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments based on their findings.
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TAXATION (Continued)

The reported income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are
different than the amounts computed by applying the statutory tax rate to profits before income taxes
as shown in the following reconciliation:

Reported pre-tax profit / (loss) 31 December 2016  Rate% 31 December 2015 Rate %
Profit before tax 20,747,681 13,269,532

Tax computed using statutory tax rate (4,149,536) (20.00) (2,653,906) (20.00)
Tax reconciliation:

-Non deductible expenses (501,474) (0.02) (633,688) (4.78)
Tax expense on income statement (4,651,010) (22.42) (3,287,594) (24.78)

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 tax expense in the income statement
are summarized below:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Corporate tax provison expense (4,949,727) (3,139,594)
Deferred tax income / (expense) 298,717 (148,000)
Tax provision (4,651,010) (3,287,594)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The weighted average number of shares of the Company and earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Weighted average number of outstanding shares 55,500,000 55,500,000
Net profit for the period 16,096,671 9,981,938
Basic earnings per share 0,2900 0,1799

There is no diluted share of the Company.

()Capital increase has been made through internal sources, increase in the number of shares used in
the previous period calculation of earnings per share.
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

For the years ended from the details of transactions with related parties as at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Bank Deposits
T.Halk Bankasi1 AS 1,066,109 199,890

Fund Borrowed
T.Halk Bankasi1 AS 92,500,000 -

Sundry Liabilities (*)
Halk Sigorta AS 19,498 55,436

(®Sundry liabilities are payable insurance certificate cost.

For the years ended from the details of transactions with related parties as at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
Interest Income From Related Parties
T.Halk Bankasi AS 9,618 18,733
Interest Expense Due To Related Parties
T.Halk Bankast AS 3,540,000 1,676,118
Rent Expenses Due To Related Parties
Halk GYO AS - 71,893
Insurance Expenses Due To Related Parties
Halk Hayat ve Emeklilik AS 429,434 185,927
Other expenses Due To Related Parties
Halk Yatirim AS 2,950 2,950

Directors’ Remuneration

The key management and the Board of Directors received remuneration and fees amounting to TL
1,490,975 for the year ended 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: TL 1,361,245).

36



28

HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Collateral received

The Company has the following collaterals for its factoring receivables at 31 December 2016 and 31

December 2015:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Pledges 13,651,729,473  6,211,489,174 6,194,972,288  1,925,248,166
Mortgages 55,560,000 - 41,300,000 -
Letters of guarantees - - - -
13,707,289,473  6,211,489,174 6,236,272,288 1,925,248,166

Commitments

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, commitments are comprised of notes given to the

following institutions:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC

Notes given to the courts 361,256 - 53,056 -
Commitments given to Takasbank - - 26,400,000 -
361,256 - 26,453,056 -

Held in custody securities

The Company has obtained securities held in custody for its factoring receivables at 31 December

2016 and 31 December 2015 as detailed below:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

TL FC TL FC

Customer checks 324,826,076 27,591,369 187,787,367 13,080,297
Customer notes 4,688,109 1,474,218 8,427,256 58,152
Pledged securities - 9,574 10,000 8,237
329,514,185 29,075,161 196,224,623 13,146,686

37



(F69°s1€'€T)

8¢

SYSU 1IP3I0 Y)im S 133Ys aduefeq PO (g

(012 23yuetens jo Jana] pim) anjea Suikues jou Jo uontod paInoag -
(-) Juswneduy -

(an[ea 3wmAueds ssoig) anpjop -
(912 32jueaend jo Japa] Yiim) anjea Suikues jou jo uontod painoag -
(-) wsuwneduy -

- - P69°S1E°€T - (anjea Suikued ssouf) anpraaQ -
- - - - sjosse pasteduit jo anjea Suifues N (g
- - - - (010 33ueteng jo sona] im) anfea Suikues jou jo uontod painoag -
- - 095°€69 = patedwi J0u Inq ANPISAD 316 YOIYM S)ISSE [EIOUBUY JO In[eA SuikLes JaN O
- - 000°000°1 € - (912 23juesend jo 1oua] yim) anjea Suiuies jou jo uonod painoag -
- - 6£689L°6 - pasiedwi Jo
SNpIaA0 s PapIedal aq [|lm YoM 3SIMIA)O ‘pajerjoSaual/paLonisal aie jey) sjasse [eroueuly jo snjea Sulkues JaN (g
- - L$9°006°008°61 - (912 993uesend yo 1313] Yim) anjea Suikues jau jo uoitod painaag -
¥0¥'9Z 760°T96°1 £80°990°bT1°1 - 3NPI2A0 JOU pastediul Jay)Iau I8 YIIYMm SJOSSe [eroueuly jo anjea Suikues JaN (v
- - T8S°8TS'PEIl - uoipod painaas [EIAJB][0I Y YsU JIPaI)) -
v0¥*9T 7607961 T8S TS PEIl - aansodxa s J1pa1o winwixew ayy st sy} ajep Swipodal aip jo sy
§195SB J3YI0 syueq Aued iy Aued pajejay 9107 12qudda( J¢

uo sysodap aw ],

S3]qeA1929Y Suuio)oe

"10399s re[nonied e ur

PRJERUIVUO J0U STYSU PPAID § Auedwio)) 2y, *g 2J0N U0 pajussald sem so[qeatasal SuLiojoe; jo UONBIO[[E [2I0303S ‘G [(Z J9quIa29( € PUe 9107 JoquIsos(] € 8 Sy

Y¥su pad)

LINTWADVNVIA ST TVIONVNIA

("pesels as1mIoqO ssa[un (T L,,) BIIT Yspun ur passaxdxs ore sjunoury)
9102 YHEINTOHId 1€ AIANT VA FHL 4Od ANV LV SV
SINFWHLVIS TVIONVNIA HL OL STLON

LLIAIS WINONV ONRIOLMVA MTVH

rec

6¢



(P60°5S8'p) -
#89816°S -
065°€90°1 -

000°000°ST -
L6E19L'6 -

6t

S JIPID Yim SWwa)l Jays douereq JJO (F

(912 33yuesensg yo 1anaf yam) anjea Surkues jou o uontod painoag -
(-) JusuLneduy -

(anjea Suikues ssoid) anpiop -
(912 23)uetens jo 1apa| im) anfea Suifues jou jo uonod painaag -
(-) Juouwnredwy -

(anfea 3uikues ssoig) anpiang) -

sjasse pastedunt jo anjea Suifues jaN (q

(013 aajuesens3 jo saya| yim) anfea SuikLies jou jo uonsod paInoag -

pairedult Jou Jnq SNPI2A0 31 YOIYM S)ISSE [EIOUBUY JO anfeA Sukues joN (D

(12 a3juerens jo 1ap9] Yim) anjea SulkLes 1au jo uonsod painoag -
pastedwt 10 anp1oAo
S papJedal aq [[im YDIym SIMIAYI0 ‘PajerIoBausl/Paionsal d1e Jey) Sjasse [eroueuly jo anfea Suifued JapN (g

(92 23jueten3 jo 1ap3] 1m) anfea Suikues jou Jo uonod painsag -

9L6S1Y 8LS191°1 88TTLT11T9 - aNpIaA0 Jou paljedull JayyIsy a6 YIIYM S)osse [eroueuly jo anjea Sullues N (v
- - vSP0TS 1918 - uorod paindas [eI3JBI[0D M YSLI I3 -
9L6'S1Y 8LSI91°1 ¥T1'0z8 S8y - ainsodxa Jjs11 31pa1d winunxew sy st siyy jep Surodai oy Jo sy
sjesse JayiQ  syueq Kued 1910 Kued pajejay S10T 1dquiadaq 1€

uo yisodap awi ]

S3]qeAla021 SuLio)ory

(panunuoo) ysu 1pat)
(QANNIINOD) INTINADVNVIN MSTH TVIONVNIA

("paress asimiIayo ssaqun (,1,,) BIFT YSDHN Ul passaidxs oI sjunoury)
910C YHINTOIA 1€ AIANT IVIA FHL 4Od ANV LV SV
SINAWHLV.LS TVIONVNIA 9HL OL SA.LON

ILIIS IWINONY ONRIOLIMVA JM'TVH

| 14

67



29

29.2

HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETi
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The following table details the maturities of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities. The tables
below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual amounts of the financial assets and
liabilities based on their maturities. Interest amounts to be collected and to be disbursed regarding
the Company’s assets and liabilities have also been included in the table below

31 December 2016

Maturites on

agreement Carrying Contractual Less than 3 3-12 1-5 More than 5
amount Cash Flows months months years years

fonderatve o LOGLSITTS3  (LOG7806,604)  (1,048,555290) (19,251314) - a

Funds borrowed 1,063,798,824 (1,067,007,675) (1,047,756,361)  (19,251,314) - -

Factoring liabilities 587,958 (587,958) (587,958) - - -

Other liabilities 210,974 (210,974) (210,974) - - .

31 December 2015

Maturites on

agreement Carrying Contractual Less than 3 3-12 1-5 More than 5
amount Cash Flows months months years years

Non derivative

financial liabilities 430,616,464 (431,111,681) (427,919,561)  (3,192,120) - -

Funds borrowed 430,017,443 (430,512,660) (427,320,540)  (3,192,120) - -

Factoring liabilities 223,543 (223,543) (223,543) - - -

Other liabilities 189,320 (189,320) (189,320) - - -

40



HALK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated. )

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
29.3  Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the weighted average effective interest rate of
financial instruments are as follows:

2016 2015

TL EUR USD GBP TL EUR USD GBP
Assets
Banks
-Time deposits - - - - - - - B
Factoring
receivables %15.64 %5.42 %6.52 %6.69  %17.59 %4.00 %3.43 %4.75
Liabilities
Funds borrowed %11.35 %0.87 %1.39 %2.38  %l13.32 %]1.43 %1.89 %1.40

As of 31 December, the Company’s interest rate sensitive financial instruments are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Fixed Rate
Financial Assets

Factoring receivables 1,134,528,582 485,820,124

Time deposit - -
Financial Liabilities

Funds borrowed 1,063,798,824 430,017,443

Factoring liabilites 587,958 223,543

Interest rate sensitivity of assets:

As at 31 December 2016 there is no floating rate instrument (31 December 2015: None).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency position risk for the Company is a result of the difference between the Company’s
assets denominated in foreign currencies and indexed to foreign currencies and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies.

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.The Company has closed foreign currency poisiton as at 31 December 2016.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, TL equivalent of foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities held by the company are as follows:

Other

foreign
31 December 2016 US Dollar Euro currencies Total
Banks 116,236 151,447 108,833 376,515
Factoring receivables and non-performing receivables (*) 203,722,137 95,888,766 1,471,665 301,082,568
Other assets 69,881 32,258 - 102,139
Total foreign currency assets 203,908,254 96,072,471 1,580,498 301,561,223
Fund borrowed (**) (205,196,429) (93,106,631)  (1,866,846)  (300,169,906)
Other liabilities (25,579) (167,064) (9,889) (202,532)
Factoring liabilitiess (153,537) - (51,786) (205,323)
Total Foreing Currency Liabilities (205,375,545) (93,273,695)  (1,928,521)  (300,577,761)
Balance sheet position (1,467,291) 2,798,776 (348,023) 983,462
Off-balance sheet position - - - -
Net foreign currency position (1,467,291) 2,798,776 (348,023) 983,462

®™As at 31 December 2016 foreign currency indexed factoring receivables amount TL 16,190,733
presented in the financial statements in TL column.

®As at 31 December 2016 foreign currency indexed fund borrowed amount TL 16,168,515
presented in the financial statements in TL column.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market Risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Other

foreign
31 December 2015 US Dollar Euro  currencies Total
Banks 103,867 482,575 22,948 609,390
Factoring receivables and non-performing receivables (*) 49,746,884 32,632,795 104,145 82,483,824
Other assets - - - -
Total foreign currency assets 49,850,751 33,115,370 127,093 83,093,214
Fund borrowed (**) (49,742,784) (32,299,257) (101,454) (82,143,495)
Other liabilities (5,589) (140,342) (1,705) (147,636)
Factoring liabilities (42,820) (161,317) (8,861) (212,998)
Total Foreing Currency Liabilities (49,791,193) (32,600,916) (112,020) (82,504,129)
Balance sheet position 59,558 514,454 15,073 589,085
Off-balance sheet position - - - -
Net foreign currency position 59,558 514,454 15,073 589,085

®As at 31 December 2015 foreign currency indexed factoring receivables amount to TL 12,611,997
presented in the financial statements in TL column.

“As at 31 December 2015 foreign currency indexed fund borrowed amount TL 12,534,444

Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity

presented in the financial statements in TL column.

As at 31 December 2016, 10 percent weakening of TL against the foreing currencies would have increased
profit before tax by the amount presented in the table below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates; remain constant at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015. 10% appreciated of TL
against the currencies below increased the profit by the same amount presented below.

1 January — 1 January —

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

USD (146,729) 5,955
EUR 279,878 51,445
Other (34,802) 1,507
Total 98,347 58,907
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Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Ameortized Loans and Amortized Carrying
31 December 2016 financial assets receivables financial liabilities Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Banks 1,962,092 - - 1,962,092 1,962,092
Factoring Receivables and Non
Performing Receivables - 1,134,528,582 - 1,134,528,582 1,134,528 582
Financial Liabilities
Funds Borrowed - - 1,063,798,824 1,063,798,824 1,063,798,824
Factoring liabilities 587,958 587,958 587,958
Other liabilities - - 527,310 527,310 527,310
Amortized Loans and Amortized Carrying
31 December 2015 financial assets receivables financial liabilities Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Banks 1,161,578 - - 1,161,578 1,161,578
Factoring Receivables and Non
Performing Receivables - 486,883,714 - 486,883,714 486,883,714
Financial Liabilities
Funds Borrowed - - 430,017,443 430,017,443 430,017,443
Factoring liabilities - - 223,543 223,543 223,543
Other liabilities - - 599,021 599,021 599,021

4

Banks, factoring receivables and other liabilities’ fair value presumed to be close to their carrying
amounts since they are short term and the possible losses are assumed to be insignificant in value
and therefore negligible.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTIN UED)
Fair Values of Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair Values of Financial Instruments classification

TFRS 7 - Financial instruments requires the classification of fair value hierarchy by reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments
measured at fair value to be disclosed. This classification basicly relies on whether the relevant
inputs are observable or not. Observable inputs refer to the use of market data obtained from
independent sources, whereas unobservable inputs refer to the use of predictions and assumptions
about the market made by Company. This distinction brings about a fair value measurement
classification generally as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

This classification of fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value is as follows:

As at 31 December 2016, there is no financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(31 December 2015: None).

Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between the
indebtedness and equity in an effective way so as to increase its profit. The capital structure of the
Company consists of equity comprising issued capital, reserves and retained eamings disclosed in
Note 19.

The cost of equity and every other risk associated with equity items assessed by the Company’s top
management and the decisions related to Board of Directors have to be submitted for Board of
Directors approval.

There is no change in the policies of the Company as compared to previous period.

As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, equity to debt ratios are as follows:

2016 2015
Total liabilities® 1,064,597,756 430,430,306
Cash and cash equivalents (-) 1,962,092 1,161,999
Net liabilities 1,062,635,664 429,268,307
Total shareholders’ equity 74,068,914 57,961,409
Shareholders’ equity / debt 7% 14%

M Totatl liabilities exclude taxes and other liabilites,
and deferred tax liability.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

None.

provisions for liabilities and expenses, current year tax charge, deferred revenues

PERIOD
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